Cambridge City Council N
CAMBRIDGE

East Area Committee CITY COUNCIL

Date: Thursday, 3 December 2020

Time: 6.30 pm

Venue: This is a virtual meeting via Microsoft Teams

Contact: democratic.services@cambridge.gov.uk, tel:01223 457000

Agenda

1 Welcome, Introduction and Apologies for Absence

2 Declarations of Interest

3 Minutes (Pages 3 - 20)
4 Matters and Actions Arising from the Minutes (Pages 21 - 28)
5 Policing and Safer Neighbourhoods (Pages 29 - 34)
6 Food Hubs (Pages 35 - 40)
7 Open Forum

8 Greater Cambridge Partnership (Pages 41 - 58)

To welcome representatives from The Greater Cambridge Partnership
who will provide an update on the Cambridge Eastern Access project.




City Councillors: Barnett (Chair), Moore (Vice-Chair), Baigent, Davies,
Davey, Green, Hadley, Herbert, Johnson, Massey, Robertson and Smith

County Councillors: Jones, Kavanagh and Whitehead

Information for the public

Members of the public are welcome to view the live stream of this meeting,
except during the consideration of exempt or confidential items, by following
the link to be published on the Council’'s website.

Any person who participates in the meeting in accordance with the Council’s
public speaking time, is deemed to have consented to being recorded and to
the use of those images (where participating via video conference) and/or
sound recordings for webcast purposes. When speaking, members of the
public should not disclose any personal information of any individual as this
might infringe the rights of that individual and breach the Data Protection Act.

If members of the public wish to address the committee please contact
Democratic Services by 12 noon two working days before the meeting.

Questions can be  submitted throughout the meeting to
Democratic.Services@cambridge.gov.uk and we will endeavour to respond to
guestions during the discussion on the relevant agenda item. If we run out of
time a response will be provided to members of the public outside of the
meeting and published on the relevant Area Committee meeting webpage.

For full information about committee meetings, committee reports, councillors
and the democratic process:

o Website: http://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk

e Email: democratic.services@cambridge.gov.uk

e Phone: 01223 457000



mailto:Democratic.Services@cambridge.gov.uk
http://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk/
mailto:democratic.services@cambridge.gov.uk

Public Document Pack Agenda Item 3

East Area Committee Thursday, 17 September 2020
EAST AREA COMMITTEE 17 September 2020

6.00 -8.20 pm
Present

Area Committee Members: Councillors Barnett (Chair), Moore (Vice-Chair),
Baigent, Davies, Davey, Green, Hadley, Herbert, Johnson, Massey,
Robertson, Smith, Jones, Kavanagh and Taylor

Head of Corporate Strategy: Andrew Limb
Enforcement Team Leader: Nick Kester
Anti-social Behavior Officer: Rachel Fairhead
Committee Manager: Claire Tunnicliffe

Other Officers in Attendance:
Detective Sergeant Mazur

| FOR THE INFORMATION OF THE COUNCIL |

20/8/EAC Election of Chair and Vice Chair - EAC

The Committee Manager took the chair whilst the East Area Committee
elected a Chair.

Councillor Baigent proposed, and Councillor Massey seconded, the
nomination of Councillor Barnett as Chair.

Resolved unanimously that Councillor Barnett be Chair for the ensuing year.

Councillor Barnett assumed the chair from the Committee Manager at this
point.

Councillor Baigent proposed, and Councillor Herbert seconded, the nomination
of Councillor Moore as Vice-Chair.

Resolved unanimously that Councillor Moore be Vice-Chair for the ensuing
year.

Page 3



East Area Committee Thursday, 17 September 2020

20/9/EAC Welcome, Introduction and Apologies for Absence

Apologies were received from County Councillor Whitehead.

20/10/EAC Declarations of Interest

ltem Name Reason:
All Councillor Baigent Personal: Cambridge Cycle
Campaign & Extinction Rebellion
All Councillor Smith Personal: Cambridge Cycle
Campaign
All Councillor Davey Personal: Cambridge Cycle
Campaign
All County  Councillor | Personal: Cambridge Cycle
Kavanagh Campaign
All County  Councillor | Personal: Cambridge Cycle
Taylor Campaign
All Councillor Hadley Personal: Cambridge Cycle
Campaign
Personal: Member of stolen bikes
of Cambridge Facebook Group
All Councillor Barnett Personal: Cambridge Cycle
Campaign

20/11/EAC Minutes

The minutes of the meeting held on 9 January 2020 were approved as a
correct record and signed by the Chair.

20/12/EAC Matters and Actions Arising from the Minutes

The action sheet was noted, updated, and can be viewed on the link:
https://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?Cld=147&MId=38
71&\Ver=4

20/13/EAC Change to Agenda Order

Under paragraph 4.2.1 of the Council Procedure Rules, the Chair used her
discretion to alter the order of the agenda to take a petition item from the open

Page 4


https://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=147&MId=3871&Ver=4
https://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=147&MId=3871&Ver=4

East Area Committee Thursday, 17 September 2020

forum first. However, for ease of the reader, these minutes will follow the order
of the published agenda.

20/14/EAC EAC - Environmental Report

The Enforcement Team Leader introduced the report and made the following
comments in response to the Committee’s questions:

I.  When officers were litter picking and rubbish could be attributed to a
business such as McDonalds, this was photographed to build up a
portfolio of evidence.

ii. Confirmed if individuals were seen littering from a motor vehicle
prosecution was taken.

lii. If members of the public had evidence of individuals littering from a
vehicle these could be sent to the Enforcement Team and they would
take the matter further.

Iv. Advised Petersfield Recreation Ground was opposite Parkside Pool.

v. Welcomed the committee’s positive comments on the work that had
been done on the city council’s open spaces and in relation to fly tipping.

vi. Officers had witnessed groups of individuals using the open spaces and
ignoring social distancing (the majority were young people) since
lockdown had been lifted. Now the Government had introduced the rule
of six people this may have a positive impact. This was not a city council
enforcement issue but should be reported to the police.

vii. If fines were to be issued by the council in future more information from
the Government was required on how this would be done.

viii. Aware the refuse workers did not lock the bins on Bradmore Lane after
the rubbish had been collected. The Resident’s Association had been
provided with the contact details of the shared waste services to directly
report this each time.

MOP: Will parents be given the fine that you will be given to the
teenagers for not social distancing because unless the Government do
not give clear rules, | would think people will appeal those fines.

Councillor Massey:

I.  Currently this was a grey area and only the police could issue fines. The
action the police was currently taking was to try and disperse crowds and
educate them on the current social distancing rules. If individuals, were
underage the parent / carer would also become involved.

ii. If those individuals were repeating the behaviour, then it was possible
the police would take enforcement action.

Page 5



East Area Committee Thursday, 17 September 2020

Councillor Moore:

I. If the government allocated funding for providing and training COVID
marshals, the city council would have the power to give out fixed penalty
notices.

ii. However, the city council did not issue fixed penalty notices (FPN) for
offences that they were able to, to under eighteens.

The Chair of the Committee thanked the Enforcement Team Leader for their
report and for the hard work of all the officers that had been undertaken since
the last report.

20/15/EAC Policing and Safer Neighbourhoods

Detective Sergeant Mazur presented a report which outlined policing and safer
neighbourhood trends and outlined actions taken since the last reporting
period.

The committee had previously recommended addressing the following local
areas of concern:

* Serious street-based violence, targeting offenders

« Serious street-based violence, youth-based interventions

* Drug related crime and acquisition crime related to drugs

Executive Director of Camcycle: Cambridge residents are fed up with
cycle theft. Police statistics suggest cycle theft rates have been lower
over the last few months compared to last year, however, the number of
anecdotes seems to be higher than ever. We know that many people do
not report the theft of their cycles as they do not see the point when
nothing is done. Cycle theft has also had a lot of attention in the media
lately and the negative impact on people's lives has been well
documented. People are giving up on cycling and it is not
surprising when their cycles (often multiple cycles in a family) are
repeatedly stolen and they can no longer afford to replace them or keep
up with insurance premiums. Cycle theft is estimated to cost Cambridge
residents over £1.5 million a year.

The Cyclepoint is the worst spot in Cambridge for cycle theft and many
now avoid using this facility altogether. It is in a shocking state of
disrepair and recalls a graveyard of broken bike bits and destroyed cycle
stands.

Page 6



East Area Committee Thursday, 17 September 2020

What can be done to encourage the police to take more action to target
cycle theft?

How can we ensure local organisations, businesses etc are supporting
police by providing CCTV footage in a timely manner?

What is the city council doing to get Greater Anglia to meet their
conditions for the Cyclepoint? They are not providing the police with
CCTV in a timely manner. They have known since before the Cyclepoint
opened that their stands were insecure and have not done anything to fix
this. They are not keeping the Cyclepoint tidy and in good repair. People
using the security intercom have had no response. Station staff give
inconsistent and at times incorrect information about reporting cycle
theft and requesting CCTV footage. They state there are regular security
patrols but many question whether this is happening as security staff are
not observed visiting the Cyclepoint. They have weaselled out of their
commitment to provide another 1,000 cycle parking spaces by 2020.
They have not established the cycle stakeholder group for the area.

What is the city council doing about their own cycle parking facilities to
make them more secure against cycle theft?

More information in Camcycle's blog post
here: https://www.camcycle.org.uk/blog/2020/08/it-is-time-for-police-to-
take-cycle-theft-in-cambridge-seriously/

Detective Sergeant Mazur responded with the following:

I.  Acknowledged cycle theft and associated cycle crime was an issue in
Cambridge which the police did take seriously; understood there was a
frustration with the lack of positive outcome to cycle crime investigation.

ii. More was being done on the matter of cycle crime than in the past. The
neighbourhood teams now had the responsibility to ensure a dedicated
focus on this issue. This would improve the ability of Neighbourhood
officers across the City to identify and disrupt offenders and handlers of
stolen property.

lii. Police did not have any control on Cyclepoint but had met with Greater
Anglia and suggested several recommendations and advisory points to
increase security. However, any changes had to be done by Greater
Anglia.

Iv. Cycle theft statistics had been lower over the last few months compared
to last year, this was not a sign that the problem was going away but

Page 7


https://protect-eu.mimecast.com/s/vHPmCWPkHzEn30f6T10x?domain=camcycle.org.uk/
https://protect-eu.mimecast.com/s/vHPmCWPkHzEn30f6T10x?domain=camcycle.org.uk/

East Area Committee Thursday, 17 September 2020

Vi.

Vil.

they were aware this was due to lockdown as there had been fewer
people in the city.

The best prospect of enforcement against those individuals involved in
cycle theft was when the police were able to act against intelligence and
recover large number of cycles.

Requested the public kept reporting cycle theft via police channels,
including 101 and online; if cycles were recovered there had to be
evidence to show they had been stolen and this needed to be shown on
either the police systems, nation bike register or media appeals to link
the cycles with the crime reported.

This year there had been positive outcomes on the matter of cycle crime
with several people arrested and some resulting in custodial sentences.

Councillor Massey:

The city council had held meetings with Greater Anglia and since
lockdown had ended was trying to engage further to discuss the security
of the Cyclepoint site. Discussion had also taking place with the police
and she would continue to liaise with Greater Anglian for updates on
what improvements had been made.

The city council was in the process of arranging a cycle safety task force;
this would concentrate on cycle theft in the short term working with
external agencies such as the police and Camcycle.

Believed cycle theft had increased during lockdown and continued to be
a problem particularly when the students returned and whose main
transport were bicycles.

Had been working with the Superintendent on how the online reporting
pages for cycle theft could be made more accessible and user friendly.

In response to questions and comments from the Committee, Detective
Sergeant Mazur said the following:

Noted the committee’s thanks for the work that had been undertaken
with the city council and county council on street drinking and anti-social
behaviour in the community.

Would talk with the Acting Police and Crime Commissioner’s office on
the scope the police had to undertake work regarding e-mail scams and
what was being done across the county that could be tailored for the city.
Would speak with the Cambridgeshire Constabulary representative who
sat on Action Fraud, the UK’s national reporting centre for fraud and
cybercrime to enquire what work was being undertaken with banks;
fraudulent correspondence was very similar to the account modelling
used by banks.

Page 8



East Area Committee Thursday, 17 September 2020

V.

Vi.

Vii.

When a crime was reported (including cycle theft) online this was read
and inputted by an individual who would acknowledge the incident; these
were monitored continuously so it would be possible for an
acknowledgement to be sent late or in the early hours of the morning.
Noted the comments regarding anti-social driving in Abbey Ward
particularly on the Whitehill Estate and Peveral Road; had been made
aware of these issues very recently and had looked at the issue log.
Would have expected a higher number of reported incidents.

Anti-social driving would be tackled city wide at local level as the same
concerns had been raised at West, South and North Area Committees.
Additional training on the use of the decameter would be given to the
local teams to assist with enforcement action.

To request additional support from the Road Policing Unit (RPU) which
consisted of three police forces, evidence was needed to show why they
were required; would encourage members of the public to report these
incidents of anti-social driving to either the police or the city council’s
anti-social behaviour team to increase the number of reported incidents.

The Committee:

Resolved unanimously to approve the following as local areas of concern:

Anti-social driving

Cycle theft

Drug dealing and the protection of local young people — child criminal
exploitation

20/16/EAC Open Forum

Two members of the public living in Abbey Ward presented the committee with
a petition regarding McDonalds on Newmarket Road, speaking on behalf of
residents (at the time of the meeting there were a total of 1488 signatures).

The main concerns of the petitioners were:

V.

The health and wellbeing of residents.

The rise of anti-social behaviour including noise (not just from members
of the public but staff).

Pollution and the environmental impact on the area (including the build-
up of rubbish around the area).

Safety of residents (including school children who cross the highway)
and the public who used the area.

Page 9



East Area Committee Thursday, 17 September 2020

v. The volume of traffic which used the highway and roundabout; believed
the roundabout to be one of the most dangerous and busiest that a
McDonalds was located on.

vi.  Traffic congestion.

The petitioners then stated the following:

Since the reopening of McDonalds following lockdown, deliveries had
increased to seven days a week and refuse collection every day. The smell
and the noise pollution had become increasingly more noticeable. McDonalds
management were contacted on a regular basis regarding these issues, but
the response could be negative, rude, argumentative, belitting and
accusations the facts being presented were falsified.

After lockdown it was apparent what a detrimental effect McDonalds had on
residents in the area as during lockdown there was no visible pollution,
congestion and the air smelt fresh.

After lockdown lifted it was then decided that a petition was required to make
these issues public and incident logs were also being kept covering Wadloes
Road and Nursery Close which had brought the entire community together.

All incidents were reported with the relevant external agencies and McDonalds
directly. There had been involvement with the local PCSO (Police Community
Special Officer) and on occasion called 111 or 999.

A survey was taken on 29 vehicles using the drive through asking a series of
questions including ‘if McDonalds was relocated would they visit’, the majority
said yes, ‘do they think McDonalds was in the right location’, the answer was
no and ‘if the drive through shut down would you visit this McDonalds’ and all
those drivers said no. Most users were from the CB4 area, including CBL1.

In total 114 vehicles counted in 1 hour 45 minutes using the drive through,
taking between 17-19 minutes for 1 vehicle to enter the drive through to
leaving.

A local councillor has visited the site but there had been little or no
engagement since, Abbey People Community Group had also been spoken to
on this matter who supported the actions being taken.

Anti-social behaviour had been recorded which included illegal parking,
gueuing on the highway, deliveries in the early hours of the morning (outside of

Pagesl0



East Area Committee Thursday, 17 September 2020

the agreed planning conditions). Evidence which could be shared with
interested parties to take the matter forward.

The formal application for the extension of the double yellow lines outside
resident properties stated that residents had been consulted and agreed.
Stated that none of the residents were consulted and residents did go to the
Joint Area Committee on October 22 to voice objections as the double yellow
lines were used as extra car parking spaces and had made no difference.

Would like to see McDonalds relocated to an area which is suited to their
needs as they had outgrown the site; were aware that the land was owned by
McDonalds. But they could be prosecuted and sanctioned for some of
incidents that had been witnessed. The situation had impacted resident’s
human rights.

Wished to work with representatives from McDonalds to resolve how residents’
lives could be made better and have a positive impact on the neighbourhood
whether relocation was possible or not these were:

I.  Traffic management of the area could be put in place to ensure a safer
environment for residents; traffic regulations were continually breached
as witnessed by residents on numerous occasions.

li. Possible closure of the drive through leaving just the restaurant;
recognised this was the only drive through in Cambridge but the site
could no longer facilitate the capacity that was using this service.

iii. Double yellow lines had no impact, there was a continuous noise of
beeping horns as the road was permanently blocked and were also used
by delivery drivers. Questioned if an alternative could be investigated by
officers such as no turning. The road was also the main bus route, the
route to the dialysis centre and tankers who drove down to the depot at
the end of the road.

iv. Queried if there could be licenced security on site at the weekend as this
was when there was an increase in anti-social behaviour.

v. Queried if there could be enforcement to stop the regular bin collections
at 4am and conditions that delivery and refuse vehicles should only be
permitted between 7am -11pm.

The committee were informed that the unit was not franchised but owned by
McDonalds and had been advised by management they would not consider
relocation but the possibility of opening another unit elsewhere to alleviate the
issue of congestion.

Page 11



East Area Committee Thursday, 17 September 2020

The lead petitioners thanked the committee for their time and proposed a
working party should be formed with residents, McDonalds representatives,
environmental officers, highways officers, police, and councillors. Believed a
working party would help to improve the neighbourhood and tackle the issues
raised such as the anti-social behaviour. Concluded that they would welcome
support, assistance, advice and help from the committee.

The Chair of the committee thanked the petitioners for their presentation and
asked members of the committee for comment which were as follows:

Councillor Massey said the following:

I.  Welcomed the petition.

li. Advised if people were parking on double yellows lines it was a matter
for the police but also to keep reporting these matters to herself as the
Executive Councillor for Transport and Community Safety, dial 101 and
take photographic evidence.

lii.  Anti-social behaviour (that was not a criminal issue) could be reported to
the City Council.

iv. It was not acceptable to have bin collections at 4am and this was an
issue that could be investigated and dealt with by the City Council
(ACTION).

v. Had held several meetings with Highways (County Council) as lockdown
lifted to discuss the traffic issues on Newmarket Road. The issue was
that the traffic had been at normal levels (before lockdown) when officers
had visited.

vi. Football matches would be an added pressure to the highway and see
an increase in the use of McDonalds when they returned.

vii.  Would continue to push for something to be done with the roundabout
and would carry on speaking to the Greater Cambridge Partnership on
this issue and better active travel. (ACTION)

viii.  Would be happy to meet with the lead petitioners to discuss the matter
further. (ACTION)

Councillor Moore said the following:

I. It was clear that there was an impact on resident’s lives.

ii. She had experienced the congestion problem when visiting the Abbey
Ward Food Hub and witnessed anti-social driving.

lii. She would speak with officers to see what could be done regarding
noise, smell, and pollution as these came under her portfolio as the
Executive Councillor for Climate Change, Environment and City Centre.
(ACTION)

Pagadl?2



East Area Committee Thursday, 17 September 2020

Iv. She would be happy to meet with petitioners outside of the meeting.
(ACTION)

DS Mazur said the following:

I.  Was aware of the issues raised and agreed these seemed to have
increased since lockdown.

ii. Clarified the double yellow line enforcement in Cambridge was not a
police matter because it was in a special enforcement area and was a
county council matter who had delegated powers.

lii. The police had identified the barrier had not been secured after closing
time allowing entry into the carpark. Police had visited the site to advise
Managers what action would be taken if not rectified. Had been assured
this had been resolved which should have an impact on reducing anti-
social behaviour. Asked if the petitioners could advise if this was still the
case, if not further sanctions could be taken.

Iv. Would be happy for a police representative to join a working party to
contribute to problem solving in the area and compliment the work of
other external agencies. (ACTION)

County Councillor Jones said the following:
I. Advised that she would contact County Councillor Whitehead to take
further action where required. (ACTION)
ii.  Queried if there could be no left turn into McDonalds and the yellow box
could be raised with the senior traffic managers. (ACTION)
iii. Congestion problems should be looked at by the County Council
regardless of the petition. (ACTION)

Councillor Johnson said the following:

I.  Supported the petition and expressed concern at the behaviour of some
McDonald representatives.

li. Had been advised the day before this meeting the works at the drive
through started at 5am and not 8am as contracted. The City Council had
tried to contact McDonalds to inform them of this breach, but as the
works were due to last only a few days enforcement may not be
possible. There appeared to be a lack of concern regarding the impact
this had on residents.

lii. Happy to support the working party.

lv. Had arranged additional city council litter patrols and if there was
continued issues with litter it would be brought to the attention of
McDonalds.

Page 13



East Area Committee Thursday, 17 September 2020

v. Colleagues had written to McDonalds and suggested they should
consider relocating to a different site such as Newmarket Road retall
park.

vi. McDonalds should recognise the site was probably one of the few, if not
the only unit in a residential area. Questioned if planning permission
would be given today as policies had changed in the last twenty years
when the application was first considered.

Councillor Davies said the following:

I. Thanked the petitioners and advised Abbey Ward Councillors had
discussed the issues regularly as these were perennial issues which
had been exacerbated through lockdown.

ii. Health and wellbeing of residents and the impact of air pollution were just
as important as anti-social behaviour and littering. The congestion in
the area, particularly the roundabout was due to the drive through had
been raised with the County Council and McDonalds directly as it
impacted on residents.

iii. City council ward councillors had contacted city council environmental
health officers regarding the litter since lockdown had been lifted as the
amount of litter had increased. Would continue to raise these issues with
officers. (ACTION)

Councillor Baigent said the following:
I. Believed that planning application 14/0507/s73 (McDonalds) stated
deliveries were not permitted between hours 2300 and 0700.

MOP: McDonalds does not just effect Wadloes Road it effects all Abbey
residents and the drive thru needs to go.

MOP: The council have just signed up to the objective in climate change
which states it will reduce traffic congestion so how will this go forward?

Councillor Moore: The city council had agreed to sign up to the climate change
objective with an aim to improve air quality to enhance the living standards in
the city. As the City Council were not the highways authority this could only be
achieved by working with external agencies such as the County Council, the
Combined Authority and Stagecoach. There had been some changes and
would continue to work with these agencies to ensure that the city was as
healthy as possible.

The Enforcement Team Leader confirmed that there had been additional litter
patrols; the area was inspected daily to monitor the situation. McDonalds had

Pageaz4



East Area Committee Thursday, 17 September 2020

sent through the litter picking frequency and the area which was covered from
the restaurant. The biggest issue was litter being thrown from vehicles and the
volume of the vehicles which used the site. Confirmed that Environmental
Health were aware of the situation and this was being looked at.

Councillor Barnett asked if ward councillors would bring an update to the next
East Area Committee on this matter (ACTION all Abbey Ward Councillors).

Abbey Ward Resident: | am looking to raise a concern about the lack of
progress on controlling vehicle use (and abuse) in the Cambridge ward,
to the detriment of the environmental health of the Abbey ward's
residents. | am referring to the following issues:

1. Congestion backing up at the Barnwell / Newmarket Roundabout,
with McDonalds. This leads (at least) to increased air pollution and
ambient noise levels for those living in the area -- a detriment to
human health and wellbeing. This still occurs extremely frequently,
many times per week. The issue was raised to councillors when it
first started, by individuals and through media reports. Is there any
substantial update? Any indication that real progress was made,
other than perhaps some natural decline from the first few days of
the restaurant's reopening? Has the situation settled to a new norm
of extended McDonald's drive-thru queues, backing up onto the
main roads?

2. Anti-social driving, especially in the Peverel Road, Whitehill Road,
Newmarket Road, and Barnwell Road areas. This has become more
apparent and disturbing to those of us who have transitioned to
working from home this year, although it has been an issue raised
to councillors on multiple occasions over the last few years. It has a
detrimental effect on environmental health (noise and air quality),
and poses safety risks to walkers, cyclists, and children playing
outside. It also affects the way residents feel about their
neighbourhood. The UK Government set out a significant News
piece on the social, economic, and environmental impact of this
problem just over a year ago.

11 months ago, Councillor Haf Davies informed me of the possibility to
have speed control measures installed where this is a problem, but
nothing has materialized since; please can the committee comment
further? How about antisocial driving on Barnwell / Newmarket Road? Do
the existing speed cameras work?

Is the committee aware of the government's commissioned study on the
noise-aspect of this problem? ("Roadside vehicle noise measurement:
phase 1 study report and technology recommendations”, published by

Page 15


https://protect-eu.mimecast.com/s/3665CRl2tn1NZjiQeDa8?domain=gov.uk
https://protect-eu.mimecast.com/s/3665CRl2tn1NZjiQeDa8?domain=gov.uk
https://protect-eu.mimecast.com/s/3665CRl2tn1NZjiQeDa8?domain=gov.uk

East Area Committee Thursday, 17 September 2020

the UK DfT). Of the existing methods cited in the report to address the
problem: Option A, online reporting tools, are the only existing solution.
However, Option A is inadequate in Cambridge due to the lack of police
resources to handle the reports. Indeed, trying to report such a problem
online results in a rejection of the report.

If the interested committee members would review Option A in the
government report, they would understand why Cambridge is not even
meeting those basic standards for tackling antisocial driving.
Furthermore, by the very nature of antisocial driving, it is audible to
many people, but visible to few, so reporting of cases is impossible. How
does the committee, or the police, expect us to deal with a problem of
that nature? Shall we call / report a loud noise from a vehicle, but tell you
we cannot provide any further information?

Councillor Massey:

I.  The City Council had been working with external agencies regarding
anti-social driving and speeding in 20mph zones in East Area and what
could be done.

li. This was not just an area for the police but required action from all
agencies, such as looking at ideas whether a highway improvement bid
would help on certain roads, the use of speed indicator devices (one had
been allocated to Abbey Ward) which would be rotated around the area
on a monthly basis and data sent back to the police.

lii. Speed Watch was another avenue which could be used; Abbey Ward
Councillors took part before lockdown and caught several drivers
breaking the speed limits.

Iv. Would encourage residents to volunteer for Speed Watch.

v. The message to residents was to report these issues to the police on
101, the more incidents recorded the higher the priority the police would
give.

Councillor Davies:

I. Had been in touch with residents concerning anti-social driving on
Peverel Road and Whitehill Road as this was an ongoing issue which
had intensified with lockdown.

ii.  Would recommend that Peverel Road was one of the first roads that the
speed indicator was used on.

iii.  Would be applying for traffic calming measures on Peverel Road through
the highway’s improvement bid.

Representative from CamCycle: The Grand Arcade has reduced opening
hours and now closes at 7.30pm instead of 11.30pm. The City Council

Paga4b6



East Area Committee Thursday, 17 September 2020

website has not been updated with these new hours. Some people have
been caught out and had their bike locked in overnight. With cycle theft
iIssues in Cambridge, this more secure cycle park is more important than
ever and relied on by key workers and shoppers. The closure goes
against efforts to encourage more people to cycle and to visit the city
centre especially considering the city council decision to reduce car
parking fees.

e Was the city council involved in this decision?
Were city councillors involved in this decision or informed about it?
When was this decision made?
When did the new hours start?
Why have the hours been changed?
When will the normal hours be reinstated?

Councillor Massey:
I.  Was not aware that the Grand Arcade cycle park had changed its hours;
would ask Officers to investigate this and would respond directly to the
member of the public. (ACTION).

Petersfield Resident: Mill Road feels significantly safer now without vast
amounts of through-traffic, with pedestrians able to use the edge of the
road safely to pass others with 2m, and the change is in line with the
government's policy which (to quote) "expects local authorities to make
significant changes to their road layouts to give more space to cyclists
and pedestrians."
However, the County Council's implementation feels very incomplete,
and no-one argues that the current layout of buildouts is optimal.
The cycling campaign has called for months for a range of changes
during the temporary closure, to support social distancing and
businesses.

- Better signage at each end, with signs like "Amazing shops this

way"

- Increased cycle parking along the street

- Short-stay car parking bays for shoppers, dotted along the street

and at sideroads

- Marked delivery bays

- Removing delivery restriction times: these are not needed now

- Disabled car parking

- Maybe disabling the traffic lights at Gwydir Street

- Improvements for those with disabilities

- Bollards to prevent pavement parking

Page 17



East Area Committee Thursday, 17 September 2020

- Use of proper plastic disabled ramps, not shoddily-added bits of
tarmac
- Moving cycle parking off the pavement
- Outside seating areas to provide space for customers of local food
businesses in a safer way than indoor serving

- Tree planters next to the pavement widenings
These are all complementary changes that would back up the current
temporary changes. So far the County Council seems to be been deaf to
these ideas, and hasn't replied to the Cycling Campaign on them.
The removal of through-traffic means there is now space for new delivery
bays, on-street short-stay shopper car parking, disabled parking bays,
cycle parking, and removal of delivery time restrictions. Bizarrely, traders
have not been pushing for these - the cycling campaign is ironically the
only body who has publicly proposed addition of car parking and
delivery bays.
Would councillors agree with these ideas, in particular addition of cycle
and car parking and delivery bays, dotted along the street and at
sideroads, and outdoor seating areas reclaimed from the road, during the
temporary changes period? And will you push the County to get on with
these as soon as possible, with a sense of urgency?

County Councillor Jones said the following:

I. Believed the scheme was providing advantages for both pedestrians and
cyclists.

ii. Had been working with officers to change the build out slightly to make
deliveries easier and optimise the safety for pedestrians. As the scheme
was put in after the design process there had to be a safety audit for any
changes to be made.

lii. Reminded those present the scheme had been approved due to COVID-
19 to ensure safe social distancing on the narrow pavements and the
encouragement of safe active travel.

iv. Encouraged residents to make comment on the scheme during the six-
consultation period; the initial review would begin in the new year which
would consider the comments received.

v. Some of the suggestions recommended in the member of the public
statement would need to take place under a permanent traffic regulation
order which would require further work in the longer term.

vi. The issue of signage and bike racks were raised in June when the
design was first shared; it was hoped that cycle users would see an
improvement in bikes racks on the Petersfield side of the bridge in the
next couple of weeks.

Pageael8



East Area Committee Thursday, 17 September 2020

County Councillor Kavanagh said the following:

I. Had walked along Mill Road the day of the meeting with Councillor Jones
and officers to look in detail at the build out and the signage and what
improvements could be made. This was an ongoing process.

ii. Had received many comments from the public which had been shared
with officers as part of the consultation process.

Councillor Baigent:

I.  Requested that the relevant City Ward Councillors were invited to the
next on-site meeting on Mill Road with County Councillors and Officers.

20/17/EAC ROD; Urgent Officer Decision. East Area Community Grand
Funding 2020/21

Councillor Moore queried why the Kings Hedges Family Support Group and
the Merry Go Round Toy Library had been allocated funding as they were not
in East Area.

Councillor Smith stated she would speak to the Community Funding &
Development Manager and advise of the response. (ACTION)

The decision was noted.

20/18/EAC Outside Body Appointment: Cambridge Airport Consultative
Committee

Resolved that Councillor Davey be the representative for the Cambridge
Airport Consultative Committee for the ensuing year.

20/19/EAC Outside Body Appointment: East Barnwell Community Centre

Resolved that Councillor Johnson be the representative for the East Barnwell
Community Centre for the ensuing year.

The meeting ended at 8.20 pm

CHAIR

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 20



Committee East Area Committee Action Sheet
Meeting Date 17/09/20
Updated on 20/11/20
ACTION LEAD TIME- PROGRESS
OFFICER/ | SCALE
MEMBER
To provide an update at the next Councillor If bins are left out on the street this
meeting on a potential campaign Moore 11/01/18 | becomes the responsibility of the
regarding wheelie bins being left Executive Councillor for Streets and
out in the street and information Open Spaces.
leaflet Due to a change in regulation it was
now more problematic for the Council to
act. Discussion had taken place
regarding the use of red stickers when
the bins were not put away. A
campaign was being planned to
encourage residents to be more
thoughtful to their neighbours when
Councillor 11/01/18 | leaving their bins out, this would take
Smith place after the new recycling campaign.
The Enforcement Officers had been
working with Legal to look to target
Councillor areas where the civic action route could
Moore 12/07/18 | be taken on those repeat offenders who
left their bins out which became a
nuisance.
The sticker campaign was still in the
planning stages.
To follow up with Officers on the Councillor 11/01/18 | A S215 had been served on the
notice issued of enforcement in Robertson owners which came into effect in
relation to Walkers Garage site in August 2017 which they had six months
Perowne Street to comply. Officers would be
undertaking a site visit in February and
further action would be taken if
required.
12/07/18
Officers had received no response from
the owner and would be seeking a
contractor making the site safe and
10/01/19 | would also be looking at demolition of
the building.
No further action had yet been taken
but Officers were still working on the
matter.
Would liaise with officers what Councillor | 12/07/18
action could be taken regarding Moore
ball games being played when the
signs in the area stated no ball
games.
To ask Councillor Crawford to Councillor | 04/04/19
investigate the size of the parking | Barnett
spaces which been marked out
along the Ancaster Way. It had
been reported that there was not
enough space in the allocated
disabled bay to park to allow a PaLge 21
wheelchair user to exit the vehicle.




ACTION LEAD TIME- PROGRESS
OFFICER/ | SCALE
MEMBER

Would speak to Officers to Councillor | 18/10/20
enquire why the Grand Arcade | Massey
cycle park had changed it’s
opening hours; would ask
Officers to investigate this and
would respond directly to the
member of the public who
raised this issue.

Abbey Ward Councillors to Abbey 20/11/20 | First meeting of the working party to
bring an update on the issues Ward meet on 25 November 2020.
raised from the petition Councillors

concerning McDonalds on
Newmarket Road.

Page 22




Two members of the public living in Abbey Ward presented the committee
with a petition regarding McDonalds on Newmarket Road, speaking on
behalf of residents (at the time of the meeting there were a total of 1488
signatures).

The main concerns of the petitioners were:

I.  The health and wellbeing of residents.

ii. The rise of anti-social behaviour including noise (not just from
members of the public but staff).

lii. Pollution and the environmental impact on the area (including the
build-up of rubbish around the area).

iv. Safety of residents (including school children who cross the
highway) and the public who used the area.

v. The volume of traffic which used the highway and roundabout;
believed the roundabout to be one of the most dangerous and
busiest that a McDonalds was located on.

vi.  Traffic congestion.

The petitioners then stated the following:

Since the reopening of McDonalds following lockdown, deliveries had
increased to seven days a week and refuse collection every day. The
smell and the noise pollution had become increasingly more noticeable.
McDonalds management were contacted on a regular basis regarding
these issues, but the response could be negative, rude, argumentative,
belitting and accusations the facts being presented were falsified.

After lockdown it was apparent what a detrimental effect McDonalds had
on residents in the area as during lockdown there was no visible pollution,
congestion and the air smelt fresh.

After lockdown lifted it was then decided that a petition was required to
make these issues public and incident logs were also being kept covering
Wadloes Road and Nursery Close which had brought the entire
community together.

All incidents were reported with the relevant external agencies and
McDonalds directly. There had been involvement with the local PCSO
(Police Community Special Officer) and on occasion called 111 or 999.

A survey was taken on 29 vehicles using the drive through asking a series
of questions including ‘if McDonalds was relocated would they visit’, the

Page 23



majority said yes, ‘do they think McDonalds was in the right location’, the
answer was no and ‘if the drive through shut down would you visit this
McDonalds’ and all those drivers said no. Most users were from the CB4
area, including CB1.

In total 114 vehicles counted in 1 hour 45 minutes using the drive through,
taking between 17-19 minutes for 1 vehicle to enter the drive through to
leaving.

A local councillor has visited the site but there had been little or no
engagement since, Abbey People Community Group had also been
spoken to on this matter who supported the actions being taken.

Anti-social behaviour had been recorded which included illegal parking,
gueuing on the highway, deliveries in the early hours of the morning
(outside of the agreed planning conditions). Evidence which could be
shared with interested parties to take the matter forward.

The formal application for the extension of the double yellow lines outside
resident properties stated that residents had been consulted and agreed.
Stated that none of the residents were consulted and residents did go to
the Joint Area Committee on October 22 to voice objections as the double
yellow lines were used as extra car parking spaces and had made no
difference.

Would like to see McDonalds relocated to an area which is suited to their
needs as they had outgrown the site; were aware that the land was owned
by McDonalds. But they could be prosecuted and sanctioned for some of
incidents that had been withessed. The situation had impacted resident’s
human rights.

Wished to work with representatives from McDonalds to resolve how
residents’ lives could be made better and have a positive impact on the
neighbourhood whether relocation was possible or not these were:

I.  Traffic management of the area could be put in place to ensure a
safer environment for residents; traffic regulations were continually
breached as witnessed by residents on numerous occasions.

ii. Possible closure of the drive through leaving just the restaurant;
recognised this was the only drive through in Cambridge but the site
could no longer facilitate the capacity that was using this service.

lii.  Double yellow lines had no impact, there was a continuous noise of
beeping horns as the road was permanently blocked and were also
used by delivery drivers. Questioned if an alternative could be

Page 24



investigated by officers such as no turning. The road was also the
main bus route, the route to the dialysis centre and tankers who
drove down to the depot at the end of the road.

iv. Queried if there could be licenced security on site at the weekend
as this was when there was an increase in anti-social behaviour.

v. Queried if there could be enforcement to stop the regular bin
collections at 4am and conditions that delivery and refuse vehicles
should only be permitted between 7am -11pm.

The committee were informed that the unit was not franchised but owned
by McDonalds and had been advised by management they would not
consider relocation but the possibility of opening another unit elsewhere
to alleviate the issue of congestion.

The lead petitioners thanked the committee for their time and proposed a
working party should be formed with residents, McDonalds
representatives, environmental officers, highways officers, police, and
councillors. Believed a working party would help to improve the
neighbourhood and tackle the issues raised such as the anti-social
behaviour. Concluded that they would welcome support, assistance,
advice and help from the committee.

The Chair of the committee thanked the petitioners for their presentation
and asked members of the committee for comment which were as follows:

Councillor Massey said the following:

I.  Welcomed the petition.

li. Advised if people were parking on double yellows lines it was a
matter for the police but also to keep reporting these matters to
herself as the Executive Councillor for Transport and Community
Safety, dial 101 and take photographic evidence.

lii. Anti-social behaviour (that was not a criminal issue) could be
reported to the City Council.

iv. Itwas not acceptable to have bin collections at 4am and this was an
issue that could be investigated and dealt with by the City Council
(ACTION).

v. Had held several meetings with Highways (County Council) as
lockdown lifted to discuss the traffic issues on Newmarket Road.
The issue was that the traffic had been at normal levels (before
lockdown) when officers had visited.

vi. Football matches would be an added pressure to the highway and
see an increase in the use of McDonalds when they returned.

Page 25



Vil.

viii.

Would continue to push for something to be done with the
roundabout and would carry on speaking to the Greater Cambridge
Partnership on this issue and better active travel. (ACTION)

Would be happy to meet with the lead petitioners to discuss the
matter further. (ACTION)

CounC|IIor Moore said the following:

It was clear that there was an impact on resident’s lives.

She had experienced the congestion problem when visiting the
Abbey Ward Food Hub and withessed anti-social driving.

She would speak with officers to see what could be done regarding
noise, smell, and pollution as these came under her portfolio as the
Executive Councillor for Climate Change, Environment and City
Centre. (ACTION)

She would be happy to meet with petitioners outside of the meeting.
(ACTION)

DS Mazur said the following:

Was aware of the issues raised and agreed these seemed to have
increased since lockdown.

Clarified the double yellow line enforcement in Cambridge was not
a police matter because it was in a special enforcement area and
was a county council matter who had delegated powers.

The police had identified the barrier had not been secured after
closing time allowing entry into the carpark. Police had visited the
site to advise Managers what action would be taken if not rectified.
Had been assured this had been resolved which should have an
impact on reducing anti-social behaviour. Asked if the petitioners
could advise if this was still the case, if not further sanctions could
be taken.

Would be happy for a police representative to join a working party
to contribute to problem solving in the area and compliment the work
of other external agencies. (ACTION)

County Councillor Jones said the following:

Advised that she would contact County Councillor Whitehead to
take further action where required. (ACTION)

Queried if there could be no left turn into McDonalds and the yellow
box could be raised with the senior traffic managers. (ACTION)
Congestion problems should be looked at by the County Council
regardless of the petition. (ACTION)

Page 26



Committee Manager note: County Councillor Whitehead spoke to County
Council Officers, the Traffic Manager responded with the following

We did work with the police and MacDonald's prior to them reopening after
lockdown to ensure that the traffic was not backing up and causing
problems at the roundabout. MacDonald's did take some initial action at
the time to address the concerns. They are now largely back to business
as usual now so it is a concern to hear from you that there is an ongoing
traffic problem being caused by the restaurant. | have now asked our
Highways traffic monitoring centre to have a look back the historic data
we have to see if there is any marked difference from pre Covid levels to
now and to monitor the issue over the next couple of weeks. If we do see
evidence of this issue on a regular basis, we will approach the restaurant
to highlight this safety risk on the highway and ask them to take some
action to mitigate the risk.

Councillor Johnson said the following:

I.  Supported the petition and expressed concern at the behaviour of
some McDonald representatives.

li. Had been advised the day before this meeting the works at the drive
through started at 5am and not 8am as contracted. The City Council
had tried to contact McDonalds to inform them of this breach, but
as the works were due to last only a few days enforcement may not
be possible. There appeared to be a lack of concern regarding the
impact this had on residents.

lii. Happy to support the working party.

iv. Had arranged additional city council litter patrols and if there was
continued issues with litter it would be brought to the attention of
McDonalds.

v. Colleagues had written to McDonalds and suggested they should
consider relocating to a different site such as Newmarket Road
retail park.

vi. McDonalds should recognise the site was probably one of the few,
if not the only unit in a residential area. Questioned if planning
permission would be given today as policies had changed in the
last twenty years when the application was first considered.

Committee Manager note: Letter from City Council Abby Ward
(Councillors Johnson, Massey and Davies) has been sent to external
agencies inviting them to a working party in November 2020.

Councillor Davies said the following:

Page 27



I.  Thanked the petitioners and advised Abbey Ward Councillors had
discussed the issues regularly as these were perennial issues
which had been exacerbated through lockdown.

ii. Health and wellbeing of residents and the impact of air pollution
were just as important as anti-social behaviour and littering. The
congestion in the area, particularly the roundabout was due to the
drive through had been raised with the County Council and
McDonalds directly as it impacted on residents.

ii. City council ward councillors had contacted city council
environmental health officers regarding the litter since lockdown
had been lifted as the amount of litter had increased. Would
continue to raise these issues with officers. (ACTION)

Councillor Baigent said the following:
I. Believed that planning application 14/0507/s73 (McDonalds) stated
deliveries were not permitted between hours 2300 and 0700.

MOP: McDonalds does not just effect Wadloes Road it effects all
Abbey residents and the drive thru needs to go.

MOP: The council have just signed up to the objective in climate
change which states it will reduce traffic congestion so how will this
go forward?

Councillor Moore: The city council had agreed to sign up to the climate
change objective with an aim to improve air quality to enhance the living
standards in the city. As the City Council were not the highways authority
this could only be achieved by working with external agencies such as the
County Council, the Combined Authority and Stagecoach. There had
been some changes and would continue to work with these agencies to
ensure that the city was as healthy as possible.

The Enforcement Team Leader confirmed that there had been additional
litter patrols; the area was inspected daily to monitor the situation.
McDonalds had sent through the litter picking frequency and the area
which was covered from the restaurant. The biggest issue was litter being
thrown from vehicles and the volume of the vehicles which used the site.
Confirmed that Environmental Health were aware of the situation and this
was being looked at.

Councillor Barnett asked if ward councillors would bring an update to the

next East Area Committee on this matter (ACTION all Abbey Ward
Councillors).

Page 28



Agenda Iltem 5

Neighbourhood Profile

Cambridge City East — December 2020

Wards: Abbey, Coleridge, Petersfield and Romsey

Produced by:
Cambridgeshire Constabulary:

e Inspector Edward McNeill
e Detective Sergeant Kiri Mazur

Community Safety Team, Cambridge City Council:

e Lynda Kilkelly, Community Safety Manager
e Rachel Fairhead, Anti-Social Behaviour Officer

CAMBRIDGE
CITY COUNCIL

Creating a safer
Cambridgeshire

Page 29



Contents

1. Introduction 3
Aim
Methodology

2. Current Areas of Concern 3

Anti-Social Driving
Cycle theft
Drug dealing and the protection of local young people — child criminal exploitation.

3. Proactive Work and Emerging Issues 5

Cambridgeshire Constabulary
Cambridge City Council

4. Additional Information 6

5. Recommendations 6

Page 30



1. Introduction
Aim

The aim of the Neighbourhood profile update is to provide an overview of action taken
since the last reporting period, identify on-going and emerging crime and disorder issues,
and provide recommendations for future areas of concern and activity in order to facilitate
effective policing and partnership working in the area.

The document should be used to inform multi-agency neighbourhood panel meetings and
neighbourhood policing teams, so that issues can be identified, effectively prioritised and
partnership problem solving activity undertaken.

Methodology
This document was produced using data received from the following sources:
e The Safer Neighbourhood Policing Team for the area,;
e The City Council’'s Community Safety Team;
e The general public, via online and telephone crime and intelligence reporting; and

e Consultation with elected Ward and County members.

2. Current Areas of Concern

At the East Area Committee meeting of 17 September 2020, the committee recommended
addressing the following local areas of concern:

e Anti-Social Driving;

e Cycle theft; and

e Drug dealing and the protection of local young people — child criminal exploitation.

Lead officers and actions to be taken were agreed following the committee meeting. The
work undertaken and current situation is detailed below.

Anti-Social Driving

Objective: To mitigate the impact of anti-social driving on residents in the East of the City,
and to identify and act against repeat anti-social drivers.

Action Taken: This is an update at an earlier than usual stage. Three of the four areas in
Cambridge has an active “local area of concern” relating to anti-social driving and so the
wider issue is being tackled under one Operation, with individual Constables retaining
responsibility for implementing measures in their own geographic area. Whitehill Road,
Peverel Road and Wadloes Road have been identified as specific areas of concern, based
on incident reporting and views expressed by the community.

Page 31



Days of action are currently being planned for each relevant area of the City, on which
neighbourhood officers and specially-trained officers will have use of equipment, including
the decimetre (to measure noise) and speed enforcement devices. We are currently
hoping to hold these days of action throughout December, but plans will be finalised once
the correct resources are confirmed as available. There will be a further update at the next
area committee meeting.

Neighbourhood officers have increased high-visibility patrols in these areas, as well as
tackling the issue across the beat area. The driver of one vehicle, regularly reported for
anti-social driving in the Romsey area, has been traced to an address elsewhere in the
City and is currently under investigation for offences linked to the supply of controlled
drugs: if he is charged with these offences then we will apply to the courts for revocation of
his driving licence. The same applications will also be made in respect of two other
individuals, resident in the East of the City, who are also currently under investigation for
offences linked to the supply of controlled drugs.

There will also be police representation at the now-convened McDonald’s Working Group
(first meeting scheduled for 25 November). As agreed at the last area committee meeting,
the police do not own resolution of issues relating to McDonald’s, however we remain
committed to taking action where appropriate against any identified individuals and
vehicles whose anti-social driving is linked to the McDonald’s site.

Vehicles have also been seized across the City for a variety of offences. Vehicle seizures
in the East, since the last area committee meeting, include two cars being driven without
insurance, and a moped being ridden anti-socially on a footpath.

Current Situation: Work is ongoing as above and a fuller update will be provided at the
next area committee meeting.

Lead Officers: DS 2393 Kiri MAZUR and PC 2325 IBEGGAZENE
Cycle theft

Objective: To reduce the impact of cycle theft on those living, working, and parking their
bicycles in the East area of the City.

Action Taken: Police activity has been undertaken to identify and disrupt cycle theft
throughout the months of October and November. Two offenders have been charged with
cycle theft and related offences, and were subsequently remanded into Custody, awaiting
trial. Two offenders have been charged with cycle theft and related offences and
subsequently bailed, pending trial. Three further offenders remain under investigation
pending the completion of outstanding enquiries, after which a decision will be made on
whether there is sufficient information available to charge them with any offences.

Current Situation: The proactive work undertaken is being reviewed for learning, and a
decision on whether any aspects of it can be absorbed into daily “business as usual” for
the neighbourhood team, or whether regular periods of dedicated proactive work will take
place in the future.

Page 32



There is Constabulary representation at a newly-established multi-agency cycle crime task
group, which includes representatives from CamCycle, Cambridge City Council and
Neighbourhood Watch. We continue to work with partners, including the Council and
Neighbourhood Watch, to identify opportunities for increasing public knowledge of, and
use of, police reporting mechanisms and bike registration portals, such as the National
Bike Register. We continue to discuss security and crime prevention methods at the Cycle
Point with Greater Anglia. Neighbourhood officers are represented at a national level,
working with multiple different forces to identify best practice, share intelligence and look at
industry wide preventative measures.

Lead Officer: DS 2393 Kiri MAZUR
Drug dealing and the protection of local young people — child criminal exploitation.

Objective: To identify and disrupt the perpetrators of organised drug dealing, and to
safeguard and divert young people at risk of becoming victims of criminal exploitation
linked to drug dealing and County lines.

Action Taken: The Neighbourhood support team (formerly the impact team) retain the
lead responsibility for County lines disruption, and continue to spend a significant amount
of time patrolling in the East of the City, making numerous arrests and seizures of
controlled drugs and criminal property.

Neighbourhood Officers have recently dismantled a cannabis factory in the East of the
City, with one person arrested and charged with cannabis production. They are
subsequently being investigated by the UK Border Agency for immigration offences.
Cannabis plants, worth thousands of pounds, have been taken out of the controlled drugs
market as a result of this action.

Officers have also been supporting Op SCEPTRE, the recent national week of action
against knife crime, with proactive patrols and inputs to school-aged children about the
dangers of carrying weapons, and what support is available. An application is being
prepared for additional Redeployable CCTV in the vicinity of Cambridge Central train
station which, if granted, would potentially assist in tackling this area of concern as well as
the area of concern for cycle theft.

Current Situation: A fuller update will be provided at the next area committee meeting.

Lead Officer: DS 2393 Kiri MAZUR

3. Proactive Work and Emerging Issues
Cambridgeshire Constabulary

Our proactive work will continue to focus on the areas of concern identified at the last area
committee meeting.

Page 33



Cambridge City Council

The City Council’'s Community Safety Team (CST) has continued to work with partners to
provide a responsive service regarding reported incidents of anti-social behaviour
throughout the initial lockdown and continues to through the second lockdown.

The CST is currently investigating reports of street drinking and anti-social behaviour
(ASB) in an area of Barnwell, issues around youth-related ASB near Brandon Court, and
nuisance linked to various moorings on Riverside. The team is working closely with
partner agencies, including the police, alongside the members of the community, to
identify those responsible for the nuisance and to take appropriate action to prevent this
nuisance from continuing.

All rough sleepers have been provided with accommodation during the Coronavirus
pandemic, however, we are aware of areas where there is ASB associated with rough
sleepers who are not accessing the accommodation. We are also aware of a number of
individuals with a persistent street presence in the East area, and in these cases we
continue to work in partnership with the police and homeless support agencies to consider
the most appropriate response, to ensure that their behaviour is not impacting on the wider
community and that they have the support they need to access accommodation and
services.

A new Cambridge Street Aid contactless giving point has recently been launched at
Grafton West Car Park for people to safely make donations to Street Aid, which can help
people to move away from a life on the streets.

The CST has been granted a civil Injunction to tackle significant ASB in an area in the East
of the city, and they are currently pursuing a second through the civil court. The team has
also served a Notice of Seeking Possession for ASB.

4. Additional Information

At the neighbourhood level, the POLICE.UK website allows for swift access to local crime
and anti-social behaviour data at street level. The website can display crimes on a map as
well as in chart format, along with trend lines. The three most important sections within
this website are: ‘overview’; ‘crime map’; and ‘statistics. This gives a good overview of
issues within the local area. To access the local area’s relevant data, type “Cambridge”
into the search engine on the homepage and then select the relevant area (Cambridge
City Centre policing team, Cambridge — North policing team, or Cambridge — South
policing team).

5. Recommendations

Cambridgeshire Constabulary request that the current areas of concern are recommended
to continue, to allow the usual full six months for dedicated work in these areas.

Page 34


https://www.police.uk/

Supporting coronavirus community response

Working in partnership with mutual aid,
community orgs and faith groups, providing
neighbourly help, signposting and support to
access specialist services

N

Ge obed

community action

Q
sses > M During lockdown, 700 households were being

dP =
/ X \ £14,000 grant funding distributed to kick-start
N
""’ supported weekly

J‘*Yi 1500 + active volunteers

750 door step visits to vulnerable 488~
residents

CAMBRIDGE
CITY COUNCIL

cambridge.gov.uk  facebook.com/camcitco twitter.com/camcitco

9 wal| epuaby



o¢ abed

Emergency food aid in response to coronavirus

= In March, Cambridge Sustainable Food stepped up to coordinate the creation of Food
Hubs across the City.

= During lockdown, CRC was used as a hub for cooking and distributing meals.

= From August onwards, Buchan St Neighbourhood Centre was re-purposed for use as
a Food distribution Hub

= Now have 8 food hubs across City + existing 5 Food Banks

= Cambridge City Council now supporting CSF on the provision of a permanent food
distribution hub, to carry on work on tackling food poverty

= CSF supporting 8 food hubs to explore what shape they will take in the future,
learning from the pandemic to provide tailored support in their communities

CAMBRIDGE
CITY COUNCIL

cambridge.gov.uk  facebook.com/camcitco twitter.com/camcitco



North: East:
Hope Food Hub, St Georges Church Edge Cafe

Food Bank at Chesterton Methodist church Barnwell Baptist Church
Coleridge Food Hub

Arbury food hub, Church of good shepherd C3 church Food Bank
Food Bank at Church of good shepherd

Food Hubs &

Food Banks
across Cambridge

West: St Pauls Food Bank

Food Bank collections organising weekly Trumpington Food Hub @ Pavilion

donations from residents across Castle + _ _
Newnham Trumpington Food Bank at Christ Church

Cherry Hinton Food Hub
Queen Ediths Food Hub

/€ abed

Food Bank: National model led by Trussell Trust. Require a voucher. Assessment carried out
by services such as Dr, community worker, social worker, school, church, vol org.

i

Food Hubs: Set up as temporary emergency response. Model based on open &

access, re-distribution of surplus food and access to fresh food. i
CAMBRIDGE
CITY COUNCIL

cambridge.gov.uk  facebook.com/camcitco twitter.com/camcitco



8¢ abed

Emergency food aid in response to coronavirus

b QNCTIN < [ ;m

Over 11,000 17,000 visits 113 tonnes of 10,000
volunteer to food hubs food re- cooked meals

hours across the distributed prepared and
recorded City, delivered

Working in partnership = Council staff members were redeployed to
with Cambridge Food support the emergency food effort, including
Poverty Alliance to the Mayors driver, community engagement

support emergency team, ChYpPS and the Neighbourhood
food aid in response to Community Development Team.
Covid-19

CAMBRIDGE
CITY COUNCIL

cambridge.gov.uk  facebook.com/camcitco twitter.com/camcitco



How Communities stepped up

= Communities pulled together to develop local
networks * newsletters * websites * telephone
befriending schemes

* Food Hubs developed within weeks
= Teddy bear window trails /pumpkin trails
= Sewing groups / individuals making scrubs

6¢ abed

Sense of community, place and connectedness

CAMBRIDGE
CITY COUNCIL

cambridge.gov.uk  facebook.com/camcitco twitter.com/camcitco



0t abed

Ongoing Council Support

Community Resilience

= Supporting those who need help to isolate

= Signposting for those who need help food
poverty/financial hardship/fuel poverty

= Advice / support for all mutual aid/community
groups response to coronavirus

= Network of support and regular
communications

cambridge.gov.uk  facebook.com/camcitco twitter.com/camcitco



rﬂ GREATER
| - | CAMBRIDGE
PARTNERSHIP

Growing and sharing prosperity

Delivering our City Deal

Cambridge Eastern Access
Better Public Transport and
Active Travel consultation

Jo Baker, Technical Lead




Project aims and objectives

e |dentify a variety of options which will improve
the reliability, safety, capacity and speed of
sustainable transport connections for those
wishing to access Cambridge from the east.
Improve connectivity between existing
settlements and identify the best package of
measures to ensure connectivity is in place at the
opening of new developments, thereby reducing
the need for trips to be made by the private car.

2t oba

f GREATER
CAMBRIDGE
PARTNERSHIP

ing sharing prosperity
r City Deal




Why do we need to act?

cy ¥ede

Key radial routes from the east suffer
significant congestion.

Local Plan growth likely to worsen congestion
without enabling infrastructure.
Considerable development in the area.

One of four areas identified by Executive
Board for high quality public transport routes
contributing to emerging CAM proposals.

GREATER
CAMBRIDGE
PARTNERSHIP

ing sharing prosperity
r City Deal



Location

A
N

STOW CUM QUY
Cambridge North

55 Railway Station
CHESTERTON

Stourbridge
Common

vt abed

E Newmarket Road

FRRTCELTEre b

‘i'% .

&

1134 84 prwell Road

TEVERSHAM

O
W"%d

Cambridge
Railway Station

Cambridge city boundary
Railway station

Railway line

Al4

Newmarket Road

P
M a)jazen

=]
.
L
messss Other major roads

g
.

GREATER
CAMBRIDGE

PARTNERSHIP

Wisjor junction Growmg_and haring prospenty
Deliv iy Deal
Junction number
0.5 Tkm CHERRY HINTON ¥71 Major development sites




The story so far

 Stakeholder workshops held on 1 and 2 July.
e Public engagement ran from 6 July to 3
August (online due to Covid-19).

Executive Board gave approval to consult at
its meeting on 1 October.

Project proposed to comprise two phases

e Phase A: addresses existing problems: 2020-
2025

e Phase B: addresses future challenges: 2025
onwards

Gieobed

f GREATER
CAMBRIDGE

PARTNERSHIP
ing sharing prosperity




Consultation

ot aed Y

The public consultation runs from 26 October
to midday on 18 December.

There are five options that we are consulting
on.

They include public transport and active
travel measures.

Shorter term and longer term measures.

No decisions have been made.

f GREATER
CAMBRIDGE
PARTNERSHIP

Growing and sharing prosperity
Delivering our City Deal



Option Al: Newmarket Road improvements

A
N

Fen STOW CUM QuUY
Cambridge North Ditton

55 Railway Station

CHESTERTON

a\"‘"'“‘

B1og,

Stourbridge
Common

Ar

m Newmarket Road

/v abed

© Key

g

= & Major development sites
] N Major Junction
€

& H g Expansion of Newmarket Road Park & Ride
& mls site. Promation of park and cycle
£
T

Install new segregated cycle lane along all of
Newmarket Road in both directions

TEVERSHAM = Improve all traffic lights along Newmarket
Road and nearby road to control traffic flow
Remove inbound bus lanes

Provide new outbound bus lanes between
Elizabeth Way and the Leper Chapel

==} New pedestrian and cycle link from the
airport site to connectinto the Chisholm Trail

ROMSEY

B Reconfiguration of Elizabeth Way
Roundabout, including the removal of

oram""zq,,e ""rlhofc,_,,,

M"”Roq subway and reduce junction capacity

d

Cambridge Reconfiguration of the Newmarket Road and
Railway Station Coldham’s Lane junction

@  install traffic lights and reduce junction
capacity at Newmarket Road and Barnwell
Road

| | Reconfiguration of the Newmarket Road and f EEEnAB-rREIEGE

PARTNERSHIP

Ditton Lane junction and reduce junction
capacity

Install traffic lights at the junction of
Newmarket Road and Airport Way

o
o
8
5
F
o
N 0
Growing and sharing prosperity
g i CHERRY HINTON \ i"\ Improve capacity at Quy Interchange Delivering our City Deal
=
&
o




Option A2: Newmarket Road Improvements +
Park & Ride Relocation

gy obed

PRI LT

CHESTERTON

'"*'”Ro.,d

Cambridge
Railway Station

Stourbridge
Common

ROMSEY

Cambridge North
§ Railway Station

Ditton
Meadows

“‘d@d“"

oy

An3q Barnwell Road

ay

Fen
Ditton

A
s
)

Alpor iy

TEVERSHAM

Land north of Cherry

[,,,,e

A
m 8jazen

CHERRY HINTON \ 'f\

Y

Ipeo,

B Improve all traffic lights along Newmarket Road

==} New pedestrian and cycle link from the airport

STOW CUM QUY

/ Indicative relocation of Newmarket Road Park &
j Ride site. Promation of park and cyde

< Newmarket Road in both directions

Major devel opment sites
Major Junctions

+ Install new segregated cycle lane along all of

and nearby road to control traffic flow
Rermove inbound bus lanes

Provide new outbound bus lanes between
Elizabeth Way and the Leper Chapel

siteto connect into the Chisholm Trail

Install additional laneis) on Newrnarket Road
to east of Airport Way junction
Reconfiguration of Elizabeth Way
Roundabout, including the removal of subway
and reduce junction capacity

Reconfiguration of the Newmarket Road and
Coldhams Lane junction

Install traffic lights and reduce junction capacity at
Newmarket Road and Barnwell Road

Reconfiguration of the Newmarket Road and
Ditton Lane junction and reduce junction capacity

Reconfiguration of A14 Junction 34
(with Ditton Lane)

Install traffic lights at the junction of Newmarket
Road and Airport Way

Improve capacity at Quy Interchange

ﬁf" GREATER
CAMERIDGE

PARTNERSHIP

Growing and sharing prosperity



Option B1: High Quality Public Transport Route
via Coldhams Lane

A
N

Fen STOW CUM QUY
Cambridge North Ditton

Railway Station

CHESTERTON

Ditton
Meadows

Stourbridge

ﬂ Common Arg
7
43
Q % .
@D B
él_' @ Newmarket Road
po £
ad
O 5 Newmarket RO
3 3
e, ¥ = Major development sites
.
.'-. % Indicative relocation of Newmarket Road
qps Culdham'x"'-. . Park & Ride site to south of Mewmarket Road and
£ Common bl £ east of Aiport Way
<& 2 Bus Gate fwhich would anly allow buses through)
T

on Mill Road Bridge
Indicative CAM alignment

TEVERSHAM ¥

New on-road High Quality Public Transport route

New off-road High Quality Public Transport route
between relocated Park & Ride and Coldham's Lane
via Cambridge Airport site (to the east of the current
runway)

s=eee NewHigh Quality Public Transport route between
ROMSEY the station, Mill Raad, east Cambridge and relocated

Park & Ride

s ew High Quality Public Transport route between
Addenbrooke’s hospital, Biomedical Campus and
relocated Park & Ride

Land north of Cherry Hinton

il
gyt sasasanna,,
oag Heipis

( New pedestrian and cycle bridges over the railway
line and Coldham’s Lane to connect Tins cycle path
with the airport site

New cyclelanes along Coldham’s Lane between the gﬁﬂ GREATER
Cambridge Airport site site and the Sainsbury's CAMBRIDGE

o
)
B roundabaut. Improve existing cycle pravisian along
: beck s PARTNERSHIP
& ==} New pedestrian and cyclelink from the Cambridge
Airport site to connectinto the Chisholm Trail
£y Widen Coldhams Lane south of the Cambridge
05 lom & Airportsite. Install left turn fifter lane for buses at

CHERRY ON g the Sainsbury's roundabout

Cambridge
Railway Station

Growing and sharing prosperity

Delivering our City Deal




c Transport Route

Option B2: High quality Publ
via the Tins

A
N

Fen STOW CUM QUY
Cambridge North Ditton
Railway Station
CHESTERTON
o
W
Ditton
Meadows
-U Stourbridge
g) Common
kS
@D %
w
& =
o 1 A .- o
ket Roa'
] Newmar
-
]
o
‘¢.. = Major development sites
T E Indicative relocation of Newmarket Road
» E
@? Culdham’s'“-,, H Park & Ride site to south of Newmarket Road and
& Common u, g east of Aiport Way
& = Bus Gate (which would only allow buses through) on
g
< Mill Road Bridge
TEVERSHAM Indicative CAM alignment

New on-road High Quality Public Transport route
New off-road High Quality Public Transport route
between relocated Park & Rlde and Coldham’s Lane
via Cambridge Airport (to the east of the current

r runway)
[ ==see NewHigh Quality Public Transport route between
ROMSEY H P the station, Mill Road, east Cambridge and relocated
; Land north of Cherry| / / Park & Ride
el R H s Neews High Quality Public Transport raute between
Roag kel P . Addenbrooke’s hospital, Biomedical Campus and
Sea, relocated Park & Ride

() Newpedestrian and cycle bridges aver the railway

line and Coldhams Lane to connect Tins cycle path
Cambridge

with the Cambridge Airport site
Railway Station
=== Newcyclelanes along Coldhams Lane between the
E Cambridge Airport site and the Sainsbury's GREATER
B roundabout. Improve existing cycle provision along
5 Brooks Road CAMERIDGE
& ==} Newpedestrian and cyclelink from the Cambridge PARTNERSHIP
Airportsiteto connectinto the Chishalm Trail
= €= ewoftroad Hih Quality Public Transport route Growing and sharing prosperity
0.5 Tkm oh & between Braokfields and Coldhams Lane via a new

I—E I—l |—| CHERRY

Delivering o y Deal
bridge over the rail line elivenng ou y Deal




Option B3: Long term Rail Opportunity

A
N

CAMBRIDGE
Cambridge North

STOW Cum Quy
5 Railway Station
CHESTERTON FULBOURN SIX MILE BOTTOM
o
e
Saues: i, Ordnanee Survey, MASA, NGA, USGS | Exi UK, B3, HERE, Garmie, METI/NASA, USGS
Ditton
Meadows
Stourbridge
Common An
U 3
) £
«Q g
A
@D 5
3
ol %
-]
"
E A
= 3
% &
q_o’é Coldham’s = g
i Common a
¢ ]
L3
TEVERSHAM

ROMSEY : \ / north of Cherry ium
Mi""'?oqd % .
.

<,
b

7 Major development sites
Indicative CAM alignment
Cambridge
Raihvay Station

- ?

Double track the Cambridge to Newmarket
Line

f GREATER
Provide new station at ‘Cambridge East' CAMBRIDGE

(indicative location)

Provide a new Parkway Station at Six Mile
Bottom (indicative location)

PARTNERSHIP

o
o
E
o
5
<
& Provide new station at Fulboumn’ Z Growing and Shafll‘lg prosperity
'f:\_ (indicative location)
= i
i 2
2

Delivering our City Deal

0.5 Thm CHERRY HINTON\\




Links to other projects

 Greater Cambridge Greenways

* City Access

Chisholm Trail

Cambridgeshire Autonomous Metro (CAM)

East-West Rail

2G o8ed e

f GREATER

CAMBRIDGE
PARTNERSHIP

ing sharing prosperity
) City Deal




o
jab)
Q
@D
ol
w

5t. Neots East
2, L L2

St. Neots
(IOOUQQIUU

towards Bedford / Ondord

NOT TO SCALE

{.'.?whqum:woat Bourn Cambridge city
Cambourne  Airfield [ West Access
F . £y
® A h _O

Cambourne
Station location the.

towards Ely

Alconbury O ,, A

Huntingdon o :

St.lves
Northstowe
L

Northstowe

Science Park

Cambridge
Science Park
b

Darwin Grean
x "

Eddington
T ]

eseee ..‘...
Bourn Airflald o
en

City Centre O
=]

Southem Frings
kg

Trumpington [

e® 000000000 NOR0000RERNERGS

“socvceneconoononoes

the

Shelford

: Foxton

EGH

Wﬂ:! c..nnmlug- Cavqbridge e CI -

Greater Cambridge
Future Network
.) \é\"atefbea(h S

North East
Cambridge

Cambridge North &

'.' Marleigh o n

Newmarket

Mildenhall

3]

Land North of
Charry Hinton
: ey Hinmas
* £ Cambridge East

Station kocation the

o guart il CAM

Cambridge South &

Cambridge Biomedical
Campus | Cambridga South
1 (]

[ Pak s Ride

<<} ?ahraham Road @ s

Babraham
Research Campus
« [}

Al @

towards Royston / London Kings Cross towards Stansted Alrport

GREATER
CAMERIDGE
PARTNERSHIP

Granta Park "
ol O Linton
£ Whittlesford Parkway E

Wellcome Trust
Genoma Campus
et fpectyin

" Growing and sharing prosperity

/ London Liverpacl Street Haverhill Del

2 our City Deal




We want to hear from you

e Visit our website:

www.greatercambridge.org.uk/CEA-
Consultation

Call us: 01223 699906
Hard copy surveys are available on request

vG ofied e

GREATER
CAMERIDGE

PARTNERSHIP



http://www.greatercambridge.org.uk/CEA-Consultation

Next steps

 Consultation closes at midday on 18 December
2020.

e Consultation report and recommendations will

be submitted to our Executive Board in spring

2021.

GG obed

f GREATER

CAMBRIDGE
PARTNERSHIP

ing sharing prosperity
) City Deal




Questions

9G obed

f GREATER
CAMBRIDGE
PARTNERSHIP

Growing and sharing prosperity

Delivering our City Deal



r GREATER
CAMBRIDGE
PARTNERSHIP

Growing and sharing prosperity
Delivering our ity Deal




This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	Minutes

	4 Matters and Actions Arising from the Minutes
	Minute_ McDonald Petition and Action Updates

	5 Policing and Safer Neighbourhoods
	6 Food Hubs
	8 Greater Cambridge Partnership
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15
	Slide Number 16
	Slide Number 17


